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The European Year of Intercultural Dialogue generated an impres-
sive line-up of activities throughout and beyond 2008. Recent policy 
developments in various Member States have also proven that the 
message and efforts of the European Year 2008 will echo far beyond  
the Year itself. As a result of many initiatives, the knowledge gained 
throughout the year has been made available on a long-term basis 
in print, audio and online media. Here is a selection of publications, 
studies and training toolkits designed within the framework of the 
European Year of Intercultural Dialogue.

Intercultural Dialogue for the Young Generation 
and Their Teachers

▶  On the occasion of the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue, 
Claudia Schmied, Austrian Minister for Education, Arts and 
Culture, stressed the governmentʼs focus on multilingualism and 
integration and drew attention to the many advantages of cultural  
diversity. A multilingual DVD for parents of immigrant origin is 

one of the tools the government uses to facilitate the integration 
of families that primarily speak languages other than German. 
It contains extensive information on the Austrian school system 
and information on the rights and obligations of parents in their 
respective native language. This medium was chosen in order to 
reach out to parents with weak reading abilities who often have 
difficulties in obtaining information via print publications or the 
internet and who require information tailored to their needs.

▶  A CD ROM on the intercultural dimension of school curricula in 
Cyprus entitled “All the World is one World” was given to all Cypriot 
primary schools within the framework of a pan-Cypriot training 
programme.

▶  A textbook for Romanian history teachers published by the Regional 
Centre for Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe was the  
result of a two-year initiative entitled “Project on Ethnic Relations”. 
The book aims to help teachers present the history of national 
minorities in Romania, such as Roma and Hungarians, and it is 
intended to be used in history lessons for all children, especially 

Learning from the European Year of  
Intercultural Dialogue

Children, Javier Arcenillas, Spain – Photo competition “Cultures on my Street”
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those of the majority group, in order to reduce stereotypes by 
spreading knowledge. 

▶  In Slovenia, the DVD “Richness in Diversity: Learning for Quality 
Coexistence in a Multicultural Environment” was produced as part 
of the European Year 2008 by the Slovenian Institute for Adult 
Education.

▶  Czech Republic: “People in Need: Programmes of Multicultural 
Education” is a collection and analysis of the effectiveness of multi- 
cultural educational programmes. One part of the brochure focuses  
on teaching methods (communication, interaction, working with 
prejudices and stereotypes etc.). The main part is dedicated to speci- 
fic ethnic, religious and other groups and focuses on topics such 
as neo-Nazi movements, sub-culture issues or gender matters.

Seminars and Training

▶  The Hungarian conference and training course “Managing Inter-
national Cultural Projects” was intended to help project organisers 
gain relevant knowledge about the nature of intercultural projects, 
how to organise them and how to familiarize themselves with the 
subject of cultural diversity in general. The material provided also 
included examples of good practices, and a list of international 
experts.

▶  Under the title “Letʼs Meet - Different Does Not Mean Alien”, the 
National Centre for Culture of the town of Lublin in Poland organ-
ised a series of workshops and training courses on intercultural 
communication for young people. The aim of the project was to 
highlight the multicultural situation in the Polish-Ukrainian border 
region through creative meetings between teenagers from both 
sides of the border. 

▶  The Austrian project “Creative Thinking for an Innovative Manage-
ment of Cultural Diversity” brought together students, teachers, 
artists and experts from 24 countries. The young participants and 
their teachers formed cross-border teams and developed ideas on 
linguistic, innovative, social and educational aspects of cultural  
diversity. At the final event in Graz (Austria) and Maribor (Slovenia), 
the projects and experiences were presented and discussed in 
workshops, at the “Market of Ideas” or during the “Long Night of 
Intercultural Dialogue”.

Research 

▶  In October 2008, the National Consultative Committee on Racism 
and Interculturalism (NCCRI) in Ireland published a compilation 
of key research findings to propose an intercultural approach to 
housing policy, and another scientific publication on standards for  
interpreting and translation policy. In February 2008, a research 
project was launched by the Irish Arts Council to present its 
Intercultural Arts Strategy. 

▶  The National Centre for Culture in the Podlaskie District of Poland 
conducted a research project entitled “Beyond Tolerance - The 
Attitudes of Young People Towards Cultural Otherness in the 
Perspective of Social Interactions”. One objective of the research 
was to initiate activities highlighting the cultural heritage of Poles, 
Lithuanians, Belarusians and Ukrainians and to increase their  
visibility as part of a recognizable European heritage.

▶  The Austrian Ministry for Education, the Arts and Culture commis-
sioned the Institute EDUCULT to prepare a report on “Arts, Culture 
and Intercultural Dialogue”. The report assesses the current demo- 
graphic, legal and political framework as well as opportunities, 
problems and perspectives for those working in the field of culture.  
It offers a set of recommendations for the decision making process 
and is completed by a number of examples of good practice.

It is of utmost importance […] to identify and 

promote the talents of children and teenagers 

with an immigration background […]. This sort of  

empowerment is an enrichment for our whole  

society.  Claudia Schmied,  

 Austrian Minister for Education, Arts and Culture
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The European Year of Intercultural Dialogue came alive through fes-
tivals, exhibitions, stage performances and concerts, mixing enter-
tainment and the important message of intercultural dialogue. Many  
national partners used the opportunity to creatively urge their citizens  
to embark on a cultural journey, discovering the advantages and 
possibilities of intercultural communication and getting to know  
minorities and new cultures in their respective countries. 

Austria: Turkey Right now.

From 4 November 2008 to 1 February 2009, the Istanbul Foundation 
for Art and Culture together with the Austrian Federal Ministry for 
Education, Arts and Culture presented aspects of everyday culture 
from Turkey in the form of film screenings, art exhibitions, concerts 
and photo exhibitions. Under the banner “Turkey Right Now. Aspects 
of Everyday Culture”, the Turkish Cultural Weeks 2008 in Vienna 
aimed to inform people about contemporary Turkey and to contribute  
to the dialogue between Turkish people living in Austria and the 
Austrian majority.

 

France: African French Festival

The African Festival, from 24 June to 12 July 2008, focused on rela-
tions between French society and its African immigrants. More than 
9,500 visitors enjoyed three live shows given by choreographers 
Moïse Touré and Jean-Claude Gallota, “2147 lʼAfrique”, Kettly Noël 
and Dieudonné Niangouna, “Chez Rosette”, and Heddy Maalem, “Le 
Sacre du Printemps”. The laureates of the Seventh Gathering of African 
Choreographers and the Indian Ocean called “Danse lʼAfrique Danse” 
also staged their winning performances.

A series of concerts with prominent figures from the African music 
scene such as Salif Keita, Mory Kanté and Didier Awadi brought melody  
to the festival. A symposium allowed the participants to reflect on  
the artistic scene in Africa and discuss its ties with Europe.

Czech Republic: Our Islam

The project “Our Islam” (“Náš Islám”) in the Czech Republic was  
conceived to promote the idea of an open civil society. A theatre 
performance in documentary style brought the central theme, the 
reflection on the role of Islam in European and Czech media, to life. 

Culture Comes Alive
Kashubian dancers, inauguration of EYID, Gdańsk, Poland

More information is available at: www.tuerkischekulturwochen.at
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The project targeted the Czech youth, the general public, minorities  
and immigrants. More information on the project is available at:  
www.reptos.cz

Belgium: The kifkif-Awards

The kifkif-awards in Belgium were a contest for artistic talents 
from ethnic minority groups. Participants could choose workshops 
and classes from the fields of dance, music and spoken word. The  
finalists were given a budget of 5,000 euros to further extend their 
act under the coaching of professional artists, among them Flemish 
dancer and choreographer Anne Teresa De Keersmaeker.

Spain: 2008 Culturas

The objective of the online platform “2008 Culturas”, www.2008culturas.
com, was to create a space that both enables and facilitates communi- 
cation, the exchange of experiences and dialogue between cultures 
using the Internet as a common meeting ground. 

The project was designed to increase respect for cultural diver-
sity while simultaneously highlighting common cultural heritage  
within a context in which citizens are the protagonists. “2008 
Culturas” was realized as a double initiative that uses the Internet as 
a dynamic, democratic medium for the creative stimulation of people  
all over the world. It was set up as a web portal divided into two large 
sections: “The Exhibition”, a virtual show comprising forty pieces  
that include photography, short films, web art, music and video art  
and “The Award Competition”.

Austria, Finland, Estonia: Living Books

Did you ever “read” a person? In Austria, Estonia and Finland the 
project “living books” brought people together who would not neces-
sarily have met in their everyday lives. Based on a Council of Europe 
idea, living books was designed as a participatory art project in pub-
lic space. In a similar way to a public library, “living books” – people  
of different cultural backgrounds, heritage, gender or religion – could 
be ʻborrowedʼ by ʻreadersʼ for a personal conversation in a relaxed  
atmosphere. The range of ̒ booksʼ included people coming from groups  
which are often confronted with prejudices. 

Denmark: Intercultural Video Marathon

The goal of “The Intercultural Video Marathon” was to find the best 
film on intercultural dialogue. The film competition was conducted  
simultaneously in 30 different schools throughout Denmark. Each 
team received all the necessary film equipment in a box (digital 
camera, tapes etc.) and was given access to computers and sup-
port for editing at Nordisk Film in Copenhagen. The winning films 
were presented during the closing ceremony of the European Year of 
Intercultural Dialogue in November 2008, and were scheduled to air 
on local and national television channels in January 2009.

Intercultural Dialogue in Education and Learning Conference, Denmark

“Renton” performing at the Polish-Slovak-Czech Day, a high-profile conference, Poland
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Estonia: Film Tour

A film tour through four Estonian cities featured a screening of the 
film Persepolis by Marjane Satrapi, European Ambassador of the Year, 
followed by lectures on themes related to intercultural dialogue by 
Estonian Ambassador of the Year David Vseviov.

Bulgaria: An International Culinary Night

On 15 December 2008, the Ministry of Culture of the Republic of 
Bulgaria, the Representation of the European Commission in Bulgaria, 
and the Association of Chefs in Europe organised an “International 
Culinary Night” at the Grand Hotel in Sofia, Bulgaria. The culinary 
festival was set up in partnership with the Embassies and the cultural 
institutes of 20 different countries. The display of the rich diversity  
of the selected national cuisines marked the end of the celebra-
tions relating to the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue 2008 in 
Bulgaria.

France: Free Concert with Jordi Savall

In celebration of the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue and  
the French national holiday, the Ambassador of the Year, Jordi Savall, 
gave a free concert on 14 July 2008 together with his wife, the inter-
nationally renowned opera singer Montserrat Figueras, and members 
of the musical formation Hesperion XXI. 

The programme “Orient-Occident”, which was specifically put to-
gether for the occasion, presented music of ancient Christian, Muslim 
and Jewish traditions from the Mediterranean area as well as from 
Persia and Afghanistan.

Austria: The Long Night of Languages

On 25 September, people in Vienna, Styria and Burgenland were of-
fered the experience of perceiving the world through other languages.  
“The Long Night of Languages” featured workshops, readings and 
short language classes in various locations. The focus was on mi-
grant languages. During the night, a historic tram drove through 
Vienna, allowing interested members of the public to participate in 
mini-language courses in Croatian, Turkish, Kurdish and Arabic, to 
name a few. In addition, authors with various cultural backgrounds 
held public readings. 

Portugal: Express of Nations and  
Musical for Children
From 24 to 29 June, a special train, the “Nations Express” took 120 
young people, aged 14 to 17 and from diverse national and cultural 
backgrounds, on a symbolic journey to the city of Porto. The musical  
“Gira-Mundos” by the High Commission for Immigration and Inter-
cultural Dialogue in Portugal, conveyed the importance of intercultural  
dialogue in an increasingly plural society to children aged five to 
twelve years.

The Long Night of Languages, Austria 

“Gira-Mundos” touring musical for children, Portugal
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Luxembourg: Work, Celebrate and Live Together

On 26 September, the Cultural Department of Luxembourg cele-
brated the merits of intercultural dialogue. Under the banner “Work, 
Celebrate and Live Together”, the festivities aimed to move beyond 
purely professional relations and towards an intercultural dialogue 
between the citizens of Luxembourg and its neighbouring countries. 
The organisers also hoped to inspire regional community spirit among 
Luxembourgʼs citizens. Information stands, music performances and 
culinary events presented the characteristics of Luxembourgʼs Grand 
Region to all visitors. 

Bulgaria: HOUSES

The Bulgarian National Project for the European Year of Intercultural 
Dialogue 2008 is named “HOUSE” (an acronym formed from Home of 
Our Unity in Sincere Embracement). The house is not only a cherished 
place, it is also a symbol of unity and the preservation of traditions 
and values. The Bulgarian house, with its particular architecture and 
arrangement, symbolizes traditional Bulgarian hospitality and is a 
part of Bulgariaʼs contribution to European culture.

In the framework of the project the Ministry of Culture of Bulgaria, in 
close cooperation with the embassies and foreign cultural institutes 
in Bulgaria and other national coordinators of the Year, organised a 
photographic exhibition of traditional houses in European countries: 
“The HOUSES: Architectural Signs of Cultural Diversity”, this consisted 
of over 50 photos from 19 countries.

Hungary: The Other

A learning programme for use in exhibitions and museums called “A 
Másik” (The Other) showed children aged 10 – 18 years the differ-
ences in cultures and how anybody can become an outsider, depend-
ing on the point of view. The curator, the Artemisszió Foundation, 
prepared a teaching concept to accompany the programme.

Slovenia: EU Road Show

Slovenia organized a number of promotional events within the Year 
of Intercultural Dialogue which coincided with Sloveniaʼs EU Council 
Presidency in the first six months of 2008. In Portugal, Malta, Cyprus, 
Denmark, Lithuania, United Kingdom, The Netherlands, France, 
Belgium, Poland, Latvia, Estonia and Sweden a number of promotional  
events were organised by the Road Show with the aim of presenting 
essential elements of intercultural dialogue – through selected topics –  
and bringing them closer to the target audience, particularly young 
people. 

Sweden: Home Not Home 

The Swedish project “Home not Home” presented contemporary 
theatre with a stage adaptation of the film “Head On” produced by 
Riksteatern; installation art with the video “Restore Hope: See Me!” 
produced by Swedish Travelling Exhibitions; and the forum “The 
Room in Between”, which offered discussions, audience research and 
seminars organised by Intercult, Re:Orient and Sprong. The project 
toured in 24 Swedish cities and also visited a number of cities abroad, 
namely Berlin in Germany, and Diyarbakir and Istanbul in Turkey.

“International culinary night” celebrating the close of the EYID, Bulgaria

“Home not Home” in Sweden
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Romania: Identities in Dialogue

As part of the national PUZZLE project in Romania, the National 
Network of Romanian Museums organised Identities in Dialogue, a vir-
tual museum allowing a dialogue between people about their cultural 
and ethnic identity, their fears and real or imaginary harassments.

To achieve this, the museumʼs collection featured elements of the 
history of Romanian migrations, be they Jewish, Armenian, German 
or Hungarian, and compared them to those of ethnic Romanians. The 
goal was to allow a different type of dialogue, one that is open and 
sincere, avoiding political correctness for the sake of truth and debate  
uninhibited by stifling rules. Furthermore, the virtual museum func-
tioned as a public platform for debates and the promotion of the 
traditions and arts of the minorities in Romania.

“Pictures in My Mind” exhibition, Malta

Malta: Shaping all Senses for  
Intercultural Dialogue 

FIVE, Maltaʼs national project for the European Year of Intercultural 
Dialogue, took a vast audience on an exciting intercultural journey 
challenging all five senses. Throughout the whole year, different sub-
projects displayed the importance of the senses in the perception of 
a complex and rich intercultural reality. Sound was at the heart of 
“Teddy Goes Round the World!”, a project featuring a small bear who 
discovers new countries and their musical cultures and shares his 
travel stories in interactive performances with a young audience.

The participants in the project “Pictures in My Mind” took part in a 
series of workshops to explore how culture and previous experiences  
influence peopleʼs perceptions of places, and also to learn about 
photography and its history. 

The sense of taste came into play with “Taste a Shared Culture: An 
Intercultural Journey in the World of Food”. To show that migration in 
Europe also constantly changes our culinary range and experience, 
four exhibitions displayed recipes from all over the world in Maltese 
supermarkets. 

A “Suq within a Suq” (“Market within a Market”) allowed the discovery 
of intercultural dialogue through the handicraft of local and foreign 
artisans. Over a period of five months, a multicultural group of artists  
travelled to various local open air markets exhibiting their crafts while  
creating new items. 

Jan Figel ,̓ Marek Maďarič, Minister of Culture and Dušan Čaplovič, Deputy Prime Minister 
of the Slovak Republic at the conference “Diversity Connects”, Bratislava, Slovakia
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Austria: Dance the Tolerance

The community dance project “Tanz die Toleranz” (Dance the Tolerance)  
in Austria combined the liberating power of dance and movement 
with intercultural dialogue. The series of dance classes addressing 
integration issues gave people from all origins and nationalities, re-
gardless of their previous dance experience, the chance to participate 
in a uniting process that also brought them closer to their dancing 
partners. Anybody interested in dance, intercultural dialogue or just a 
new experience was welcomed to take part in the dance sessions. 

Last but certainly not least, a side project of “Dance the Tolerance” 
entitled quertanzen, united 130 pupils from different Austrian schools 
in a unique dance experience. For two months, they trained twice a 
week under the supervision of local professional choreographers and 
created four exquisite dance performances accompanied by music  
composed specially for this project by Bernhard Fleischmann. The 
four dance performances were then put together to form a collective 
work of art called “querverbunden”.

Slovakia: “Mosaic of the Cultures”

The “Mosaic of the Cultures” festival, held at end of October in Nitra, 
was one of the European Yearʼs key events in Slovakia. The three 
day festival was opened by Robert Hajšel, Director of the Information 
Office of the European Parliament in the Slovak Republic. The aim of 
the festival was to engage with and respect the richness of other cul-
tures. There were a number of debates around issues such as intec-
tultural dialogue in Europe. In addition the festival offered concerts 
and poetry; among the highlights were gospel singers who created a 
fantastic atmosphere in the Piaristic church.

UK: Exhibition Road Music Day 

In the UK, the European Commissionʼs Representation collaborat-
ed with the Serpentine Gallery and the Royal Parks to support the 
“Exhibition Road Music Day”, a festival of free live music from around 
the world. On 21 June 2008, Exhibition Road, at the heart of Londonʼs 
cultural district, provided the setting for over 150 live musical per-
formances. Highlights included German electro punk act MIA, a mag-
ical mix of funk, jazz, hip-hop and gospel music by Franceʼs Bibi 
Tanga et le Professeur Inlassable, British blues sensation Florence and 
the Machine and a celebration of traditional and contemporary music 
performed by the Ismaili Community Ensemble in collaboration with 
the Royal Philharmonic Orchestra. The day of music provided an op-
portunity to celebrate Londonʼs cultural diversity.

Festivities for “Europe Day” 

In celebration of “Europe Day” on 9 May, Representations of the 
European Commission in various Member States organised festivities 
with a special emphasis on intercultural dialogue: 
 
▶  In the Czech Republic, an open-air event and concert in the centre  

of Prague along with a stand by the Czech EU Representation  
informed spectators about intercultural dialogue. 

▶  In Italy the writing competition “A Journey in Europe” focused on 
the knowledge of European cultures and languages. The winners 
attended the award-giving ceremony held in Rome at the Quirinal 
Palace on 9 May 2008 in the presence of the President of the Italian 
Republic, Giorgio Napolitano, and EU-Commissioner Leonard  
Orban. 

▶  In Malta, the festivities addressed the themes of climate change and 
intercultural dialogue, as Maltese students engaged policy makers 
in a parliamentary debate on climate change and intercultural dia-
logue. Chaired by the Speaker of the House of Representatives, the 
debate included ministers, Members of Parliament, representatives 
of environmental non-governmental organisations and Maltese 
Members of the European Parliament who answered questions 
asked by attending students. 

▶  In Romania, Panayotis Carvounis, Deputy Director-General of the 
Commissionʼs Directorate General Communication dedicated an 
outdoor event to the Europe Day in Braşov. More than 1,000 parti-
cipants, mostly children and teenagers from Romania, Germany 
and Hungary, took part.

Pottery workshop in Arthur Verona Street, Bucharest, Romania
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This annual event is justifiably called a “Festival of Europe”, it forms a 
celebration of European cultural diversity through music, dance, public  
debates and activities for young people and adults alike. Each year a 
diverse programme is organised by European institutions, grass roots 
associations, artists and the general public.

The 2008 festival took place in the context of the European Year of 
Intercultural Dialogue and shared some of the ambitions of the Year: 
to foster curiosity and active exchange not only between individuals, 
different cultural groups or nations, but also between “institutions” 
and the “public”. 

Continuing the tradition of the Open Day, the European Parliament, 
the Council of the European Union, the European Commission, the 
Committee of the Regions and the Economic and Social Committee 
were open to the public all day. Visitors were able to follow a “Euro-
Tour” starting at the European Parliament and leading through Parc 
Léopold, across Place Jean Rey and up to the Rond-Point Schuman.

A team from the Commissionʼs Directorate-General for Education and 
Culture was present at the Berlaymont building and at the Parliament, 
informing guests about the European Year 2008 and the activities 
associated with it. “Les Virtuosi”, an intercultural band composed 
of musicians from various countries also gave a stage performance 
outside the Berlaymont. Two of the Yearʼs pan-European projects 
were presented during the open door day: “IYOUWE share the world”,  
organised by the International Yehudi Menuhin Foundation, and the 
European Cultural Foundationʼs “StrangerFestival”.

7 June 2008: Open Doors at the  
European Institutions

Committee of the Regions, Brussels
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Conference on “Intercultural Dialogue  
at the Heart of Europeʼs Cities and Regions” 

The event took place on 25 and 26 November 2008 and was organised 
by the Committee of the Regions in cooperation with the European 
Commissionʼs Directorate-General for Education and Culture and 
Notre Europe, the European think-tank founded by Jacques Delors. 
The Forum provided an opportunity to discuss the approaches adopted  
by Europeʼs cities and regions to intercultural dialogue, addressing the  
topic from a European perspective and highlighting best practices  
from cities and regions. The three debates comprising the event  
focused on migration and integration, diversity, inter-religious issues 
and the development of a European identity.

Photo Competition: “Intercultural Dialogue  
in the EU: What Does it Mean to you?”
Within the framework of the “Europe Works” project, and in collabo-
ration with the think tank Notre Europe and the photo agency VU ,̓ 
the Party of European Socialists Group within the Committee of the 

Regions organised a photography competition for young Europeans 
which was based on the theme of intercultural dialogue. The six  
winning photographs were selected for their relevance to this theme 
and for their visual impact.

Intercultural Ireland in Cooperation 
with the Irish Representation
To mark Irelandʼs contribution to the European Year of Intercultural 
Dialogue, the Minister for Arts, Sports and Tourism, Martin Cullen 
T.D. hosted a concert and conference in Leuven, Belgium, to discuss 
and showcase intercultural dialogue in Ireland in the arts, culture, 
audiovisual, sports and tourism sectors.

On 5 November, an Intercultural Ireland conference and showcase took 
place in the Committee of the Regions, featuring speakers from the  
arts, tourism, film, television and sport sectors as well as the national 
ambassadors for the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue. 

Committee of the Regions

European Economic and Social Committee 

Organised Civil Society as an Engine  
for Intercultural Dialogue
The conference was organised in the framework of the European Year 
of Intercultural Dialogue by the EESC and the Economic and Social 
Council of Slovenia, whose President Mr Milan Škapin together with Mr 
Dimitris Dimitriadis, President of the EESC, officially opened the event. 

“Immigrant Literatures:  
Writing in Adopted Languages”
Organised by EUNIC Brussels in cooperation with the EESC, the confer-
ence took place at the EESC, on 24 April in Brussels. Opened by Leonard 
Orban, European Commissioner for Multilingualism, the conference 
had an extremely diverse programme. Through a series of speeches,  

discussions and readings by immigrant authors, it provided a hub for 
various political, intellectual and literary points of view. Commissioner 
Orban underlined the importance of the concept of the “adoptive 
language” proposed by the high level group chaired by writer Amin 
Maalouf which was set up on the initiative of the European Commission 
and which was represented at the conference by Jacques de Decker 
from the Belgian Royal Academy. 

The conference included a series of academic and literary readings and 
discussions on the process of writing in a second language and the im- 
pact of intercultural dialogue inside and outside Europe. Readings were  
performed by Adil Erdem (author of Kurdish origin who writes in Danish),  
Kristina Goikoetxea Langarika (Spanish-Basque author who writes in 
Dutch), Saviana Stănescu (Romanian author who writes in English), Dimitré  
Dinev (Bulgarian-Austrian author who writes in German) and Giorgio 
Pressburger (author of Hungarian origin who writes in Italian).

Initiatives in other EU Institutions
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The European Parliament has been committed to intercultural dia-
logue for a long time. The European Year of Intercultural Dialogue 
provided an opportunity to showcase the Parliamentʼs numerous  
initiatives in this field. Religious leaders were invited to address the 
plenary assembly, and a film festival, art exhibitions and thematic 
weeks were organised.

Eminent Speakers 

On the invitation of the Conference of Presidents, a number of eminent  
personalities addressed the European Parliament. In a speech deliv-
ered on 16 January to MEPs on the subject of intercultural dialogue, 
the Grand Mufti of Syria, Ahmad Badr Al-Din Hassoun, stressed the 
value of culture as a unifying rather than a dividing force. Ms Asma 
Jahangir, United Nations Special Rapporteur on freedom of religion 
or belief, addressed the Plenary on 18 June. Oscar Arias, President 
of Costa Rica and winner of the Nobel Peace Prize in 1987 spoke on  
3 September 2008, and Orthodox Christian leader Bartholomew I, the 
Ecumenical Patriarch of Constantinople, spoke on 24 September. Jorge 

Sampaio, UN High Representative for the Alliance of Civilizations and a 
former President of Portugal promoted cultural diversity in his speech 
on 22 October. Sir Jonathan Sacks, Chief Rabbi of the United Hebrew 
Congregations of the British Commonwealth, visited the European 
Parliament on 19 November. The series of addresses to Parliament 
concluded with a speech by the Dalai Lama on 4 December.

African Week 8–11 September 

As part of the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue, the African 
Week featured political and cultural events and speakers such as 
EP President Hans-Gert Pöttering, Pan-African Parliament President 
Gertrude Mongella and Nigerian Nobel Laureate in Literature Wole 
Soyinka, who presented their views on the subject. A round-table  
discussion on the role of the African diaspora was held by the 
Committee on Development and chaired by its President Josep 
Borrell. A joint meeting of Members of the Pan-African Parliament 
and Members of the ACP-EU Joint-Parliamentary Assembly took place 
on the last day of the African Week. 

The European Parliament and the 
European Year 2008

Sir Jonathan Sacks, Bartholomew I, the Dalai Lama, Wole Soyinka © European Parliament
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The African Weekʼs guest of honour was Malian photographer Malik 
Sidibé. A selection of his works were displayed as large prints adorning  
the Parliament building and facing the Place du Luxembourg. Inside 
the Parliament, a series of pictures taken by Malik Sidibé traced the 
evolution of Malian society since the 1960s. The South African sculptor  
Andries Botha, whose work focuses on the mythology and sym-
bolism of the elephant as seen by Westerners, displayed one of his  
giant sculptures at the entrance to the Paul-Henri Spaak building. In  
cooperation with the Ixelles Commune, the artists Dobet Gnahoré 
(Côte dʼIvoire), Bonga (Angola) and Bai Kamara Jr. (Sierra Leone) 
staged a concert on Place Fernand Cocq. 

Arab Week at the European Parliament  
3–7 November

During the Week, the Interparliamentary Delegations, the European 
Parliamentʼs Delegation to the Euro-Mediterranean Parliamentary 
Assembly, and internal policy committees placed a special focus on 
Arab issues in their agendas. The various meetings and events of the 
Week provided opportunities for dialogues and exchanges with the 
aim of creating synergies between culture and politics. 

On 4 November, the European Parliamentʼs Office for the Promotion 
of Parliamentary Democracy held a special programme for the visit of 
Adnan Omran, Secretary General of the Arab Transitional Parliament, 
and Dr. Abdelaziz Hassan, Member of the Arab Transitional Parliament. 
The political element of the Arab Week was accompanied by a cul-
tural programme focusing on Arab countries and societies. 

Inside and around the Parliament building, an array of visual installa-
tions showcased contemporary Arab art works. The main focus was 
“Re-Orientations”, an exhibition of paintings, photographs, sculp-
tures, tapestry and videos from over 30 contemporary Arab artists, 
this was the first exhibition of its kind to be shown in the European 
Parliament. Boubeker Hamsi, an Algerian born artist, and Hassan 
Massoudy, the famous Iraqi calligrapher living in Paris, displayed 
their work at the European Parliament.

Decoration of the Willy Brandt Building with 
Photographs on Intercultural Dialogue

The European Commissionʼs Directorate General Communication 
took the initiative to decorate the outside of Parliamentʼs Willy Brandt 
Building which faces Rue de Trêves and the Place du Luxembourg. 
The large-format photographs used in this project provided ex-
amples of how the European Parliament is engaging in intercultural  
dialogue – within the European Union and also in third countries. 

During the Year, two seminars took place: “Dialogue between 
Religions”, organised by the European Women of Faith Network 
(EWFN) and “Intercultural Dialogue and the Importance of Regional 
Cooperation for Developing a Civil Society in the 21st Century in 
South East Europe”.

Other Parliament initiatives in the framework of the European Year 
2008 were the Committee on Womenʼs Rights and Gender Equalityʼs 
celebration of International Womenʼs Day, the Parliament also hosted 
the International Day of African Youth (I-DAY). The latter event re-
ceived the High Patronage of President of the Parliament Mr Hans-Gert 
Pöttering and was chaired by Vice-President Ms Luisa Morgantini.

Musicians performing during Arab Week

Arab Week at the European Parliament
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Tanzania: Pamoja na tofauti zetu tuu wamoja - 
Together in Diversity 

In Tanzania, a special song was produced by the Tanzania House of 
Talent and performed for the first time in Dar es Salaam on Europe 
Day, 9 March 2008. It was subsequently presented in a series of school 
visits to raise awareness of the partnership between the European 
Union and the Republic of Tanzania.

Croatia: Connecting Schools

In February 2008, the Delegation of the European Commission to the 
Republic of Croatia organised a contest for children and teenagers 
and thereby connected Croatian schools to other schools in Europe: 
Three children and their mentors all had to find a partner school or 
partner students in Europe, establish a dialogue and create a project 
underlining the similarities and differences in their societies. They 
presented their projects using their preferred means such as, posters,  
web pages, films or photographs. 

On 28 May, the prize ceremony was held in cooperation with Croatian 
Radio and Television. The event took place in the EU Info Centre in 
Zagreb and was attended by the schoolsʼ representatives and the 
representatives of Member Statesʼ Embassies involved in the project. 
Two schools shared first prize: Donja Stubica Elementary School (in 
collaboration with EB 3, Maria Manuela SA School from Portugal) for 
their project “Easter in Northern Croatia and Portugal”, and Braća 
Radić Elementary School from Kloštar Ivanić (in collaboration with 
Juraj Dalmatinac Elementary School from Krško, Slovenia) for their 
project “Nuclear Power Plants, Sustainable Energy Issue”. 

Egypt: Gastronomy in Alexandria

Many of the foreign communities that once formed the cosmopolitan  
population in the city of Alexandria, Egypt, have now emigrated,  
making it more difficult to gauge the achievements of interculturalism. 

Using food as a vehicle for introducing the diverse and vibrant cul-
tures of the Mediterranean, this project encouraged Alexandrians 

The European Year of Intercultural Dialogue 
in EC Delegations
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Local group, Lilunga (left) and Dobet Gnahoré (right) performing at the celebratory concert of the European Year in the Ezulwini Valley, Swaziland 
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and Mediterranean communities to engage in a dialogue with one  
another, whilst being able to see and read about the history of each 
otherʼs food and have the opportunity to contribute directly to the 
project.

The Alexandria Mediterranean Research Centre (AlexMed) initiated  
the project “Gastronomy in Alexandria: A Cosmopolitan Flavour in 
the Mediterranean”, which continued for twelve months and had five 
primary objectives ranging from the promotion of intercultural and 
diverse gastronomy in Alexandria to highlighting the benefits of  
coexistence and encouraging intercultural dialogue and exchange. 
The project focused on three activities:

The two-day open air food fair in the gardens of the Villa Antonia  
encouraged people from different Alexandrian communities to present 
their cuisine and share and exchange dishes, ingredients and recipes 
with fellow Alexandrians and restaurants. 

As a result of interviews with representatives from each community,  
a cookbook was designed exploring the various communities in 
Alexandria through their cuisine. In addition to the book, the informa-
tion was displayed on a website which contained a discussion board. 
The event was a great success, and the organisers aim to make the 
food festival regular fixture in Alexandriaʼs annual calendar.

Swaziland: An Evening for Intercultural Dialogue

The EC Delegation to the Kingdom of Swaziland organised an event 
to celebrate the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue 2008 and to 
raise awareness of the topic in Swaziland.

The event took place on the 7 June 2008 in the House on Fire, a con-
cert venue in the Ezulwini Valley in the form of a reception for senior 
government officials, senators and members of the diplomatic corps, 
as well as representatives of local cultural life and of the main ethnic 
and religious groups in Swaziland.

French Ambassador to Mozambique, H.E. Thierry Viteau, representing 
the EU Presidency in Swaziland on behalf of Slovenia, addressed the 
guests. He mentioned that preserving cultural identities revives and 
re-energizes them, and also achieves mutual enrichment, avoiding 
segregation and cultural entrenchment. The Chargé dʼAffaires of the 
EC Delegation, Mr Arno Schaefer, informed those present of the main 
objectives of the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue. 

The speeches were followed by a concert by Dobet Gnahoré which 
was open to the general public. Although the singer was born in 
Ivory Coast, she currently resides in France, works in a multicultural 
band, and sings in eight different African and European languages. 
The event was a great success, receiving broad coverage in the local 
media. 

Trams in Zagreb and Osijek promoting the European Year

Food festival in Alexandria

Initiatives in other EU Institutions



70

Turkey: Flamenco, Short Stories  
and a Conference 

Flamenco Dance Shows
Within the scope of the European Year of Intercultural Dialogue 2008, 
the world-renowned Spanish Flamenco dancer David Pérez performed 
Flamenco dance shows throughout Turkey. To illustrate the EU-Turkey 
intercultural dialogue, the MaviSiyah Group, which uses Turkish musi-
cal instruments to perform flamenco music, joined Pérez for the tour. 
 
Story Writing Competition on EU Values
The network of EU Information Relays held the second “Story Writing 
Competition on EU Values” to convey the fundamental values of the  
EU, i.e. freedom, equality, security, peace, solidarity and unity. Turkish 
High school students were invited to participate and to attend infor-
mal meetings under the banner “Story Seminars from Authors” where 
they received training from famous Turkish authors. Harun Çakır 
was the winner of the competition with his story “European Union  
and Peace”.

Poster for the tour of flamenco dancer David Pérez in Turkey 

Conference on the Promotion of Intercultural Dialogue through 
Education and Training
The main objective of the conference was to raise awareness of this 
issue amongst the general public and relevant stakeholders. The 
conference has been jointly organised by the Turkish National Agency 
(Centre for EU Education and Youth Programmes) and the Ministry of 
Culture and Tourism. The outcomes of the conference will be pub-
lished as a book, making a concrete contribution to the literature on 
the theme of intercultural dialogue and education. 

The EU and Turkey: From Perceptions to Reality
At the 16th Annual EU-Turkey Conference of Journalists in Istanbul 
on 10–11 March 2008, prominent journalists from Turkey and the 
EU discussed the gap between perceptions and reality in EU-Turkey 
relations.

Uganda: Second Europe-Uganda Village

The EC Delegation cooperated with various cultural institutions and 
the Ugandan Ministry of Gender, Labour and Social affairs to organise  
the second Europe-Uganda Village. In this family event featuring  
cultural, business and sports villages as well as an entertainment  
programme for children, Ugandan cultural institutions and EU Member 
States were represented on various stands and with activities related 
to the theme of intercultural dialogue.

The key message was that intercultural exchange contributes to 
peace-building, mutual understanding and development. In this con-
text the first National Cultural Dialogue Seminar was held in Lira on 
the theme “Traditional Cultural Institutions in Peace Building, Social 
Justice and Development in Uganda”. The seminar aimed to create 
dynamic partnerships and collaborations that can form the basis for 
future interactions and development. 

Poster for Story Writing Competition on EU values, Turkey
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Useful Weblinks

European Commission Directorate-General  
for Education and Culture
http://ec.europa.eu/dgs/education_culture

European Parliament
www.europarl.europa.eu

European Social and Economic Committee
http://eesc.europa.eu/index_en.asp

Committee of the Regions
http://cor.europa.eu

Council of Europe 
www.coe.int/t/dg4/intercultural

Platform for Intercultural Europe
www.intercultural-europe.org

Anna Lindh Foundation
www.euromedalex.org

European Festivals Association
www.efa-aef.eu

NATIONAL COORDINATING BODIES OF THE YEAR 

Austria: Ministry of Education, Arts and Culture
www.bmukk.gv.at

Belgium: French-speaking Community of Belgium
(Ministère de la Communauté française)
www.cfwb.be

Flemish Community of Belgium
Departement Cultuur, Jeugd, Sport en Media
www.cjsm.vlaanderen.be

German-speaking Community of Belgium
(Ministerium der Deutschsprachigen Gemeinschaft)
www.dgov.be

Bulgaria: Ministry of Culture
www.mc.government.bg

Cyprus: Ministry of Education and Culture
www.moec.gov.cy

Czech Republic: Arts Institute
www.institutumeni.cz

Denmark: CIRIUS - an authority within the  
Danish Ministry of Science, Technology and Innovation
www.ciriusonline.dk 

Estonia: Open Estonia Foundation
www.oef.org.ee

Finland: The Finnish National Gallery,  
Community relations and development
www.fng.fi

France: Ministère de la Culture et de la Communication/ 
Délégation au Développement et aux Affaires Internationales
www.culture.gouv.fr

Germany: German Ministry for Family Affairs,  
Senior Citizens, Women and Youth
www.bmfsfj.de
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Useful Weblinks

Greece: Hellenic Ministry of Culture/ 
Directorate of European Union
www.culture.gr

Hungary: KultúrPont Iroda - Cultural Contact  
Point of Hungary
www.kulturpont.hu

Ireland: National Consultative Committee on Racism 
and Interculturalism (NCCRI)
www.nccri.ie

Italy: Ministero per i Beni e le Attività Culturali
www.beniculturali.it

Latvia: Secretariat of the Special Assignment Minister 
for Society Integration Affairs
www.integracija.gov.lv

Lithuania: Ministry of Culture - International Cultural 
Programmes Center
www.durys.org

Luxemburg: Ministry of Culture
www.mcesr.etat.lu

Malta: St. James Cavalier Centre for Creativity
www.jcav.org

Netherlands: SICA Foundation
www.sica.nl

Poland: National Center for Culture
www.nck.pl

Portugal: ACIDI - Alto Comissariado para  
a Imigração e Diálogo Intercultural, IP
www.acidi.gov.pt

Romania: Consultancy Centre for European Cultural 
Programmes (CCECP)
www.eurocult.ro

Slovakia: Ministry of Culture
www.culture.gov.sk

Slovenia: Ministry of Culture
www.gov.si

Spain: Ministry of Culture
www.dgcc.mcu.es

Sweden: Ministry of Culture
www.culture.ministry.se

United Kingdom: EUCLID, the Cultural Contact Point 
for the UK
www.euclid.info

FLAGSHIP PROJECTS

Diversidad! Promoting Dialogue and Exchange 
through European Urban Culture
www.emo.org, www.myspace.com/diversidadexperience

Alter Ego
www.alterego-europe.eu

Cultures from around the Block: Creating a European 
Network for Intercultural Community Activities
www.mkc.cz

Tatapume - Intercultural Dialogue Radio Campaign 
www.tatapume.org, www.radiopopolare.it

iyouwe SHARE THE WORLD
www.menuhin-foundation.com 
www.iyouwesharetheworld.eu

Meeting the Other: Borders, Identity and  
Cultures in Europe
www.babelmedfestival.net, www.babelmed.net

StrangerFestival
www.strangerfestival.com



How to obtain EU publications
Publications for sale:
• via EU Bookshop (http://bookshop.europa.eu);
•  from your bookseller by quoting the title, publisher and/or 

ISBN number;
•  by contacting one of our sales agents directly. You can obtain 

their contact details on the Internet (http://bookshop.europa.eu) 
or by sending a fax to +352 29 29-42758.

Free publications:
• via EU Bookshop (http://bookshop.europa.eu);
•  at the European Commissionʼs representations or delegations. 

You can obtain their contact details on the Internet 
(http://ec.europa.eu) or by sending a fax to +352 29 29-42758.

European Commission – 
Directorate General for Education and Culture
Luxembourg: Office for Official Publications of the 
European Communities, 2009
ISBN 978-92-79-12466-2  2009 – 76 pp. – 25 x 25 cm

Europe Direct is a service to help you find answers to your 
questions about the European Union
                  Freephone number (*):
                 00 800 6 7 8 9 10 11
(*)  Certain mobile telephone operators do not allow access to 

00 800 numbers or these calls may be billed.
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